
 

NOTE:  The Council will take a 5-minute recess at 8:00 pm. 
 

                       HAMPDEN TOWN COUNCIL    

                 HAMPDEN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

                                     AGENDA  
 
 

 

MONDAY                JUNE 4th, 2018                                          7:00 P.M. 

   
6:00 p.m. – Finance & Administration Committee 
 

 
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

  
B. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. SIGNATURES 
 

2. SECRETARY’S REPORTS 
 

a. May 21st, 2018 
 

3. COMMUNICATIONS  
 

a. Letter from Maine DEP regarding new law, An Act Regarding Municipal 
Satellite Wastewater Collection Systems  

b. Penobscot Emergency Management Agency’s Summer 2018 
newsletter 

c. Letter of thanks from resident Patsy Husson for help received from 
Cemetery Sexton Devon Patterson and recognition of the crew 

 
4. REPORTS 
 

a. Finance Committee Minutes –  May 7th, 2018 
b. Infrastructure Committee Minutes – None  
c. Planning & Development Committee Minutes – None 
d. Services Committee Minutes – None 
e. Council Budget Work Session Minutes – May 16th, 2018 

 
C. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
D. POLICY AGENDA  
 

1. NEWS, PRESENTATIONS & AWARDS   
 

a. Report on recent Good Shepherd Food Bank’s Hampden expansion 
and Capital Campaign – Melissa Huston, Director of Philanthropy  



MONDAY                                      JUNE 4th, 2018           7:00 P.M. 

 

2 

b. Stormwater 101 report on Town of Hampden MS4 compliance 
activities 
 
 

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 

         
3. NOMINATIONS – APPOINTMENTS – ELECTIONS 

 
a. Warrant and Notice of Election for RSU-22 Budget Validation 

Referendum 
   

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 

       
5. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Request for authorization for the expenditure of funds from the 

Personnel Reserve Account (3-733-00) for the purpose of paying 
accrued vacation and a portion of accrued sick time to a departing 
employee – referral from Finance & Administration Committee 

 
b. Award of the bid for the concrete work for the DPW Salt Building to  

C W Martin Concrete – referral from Finance & Administration 
Committee 
 

c. Request for Council authorization for the expenditure of an amount not 
to exceed $40,400 from the Solid Waste Reserve Account (3-777-00) 
for concrete work for the new DPW Salt Building – referral from 
Finance & Administration Committee 

 
d. Award of the bid for the carpentry work for the DPW Salt Building to 

Complete Construction – referral from Finance & Administration 
Committee 
 

e. Request for Council authorization for the expenditure of an amount not 
to exceed $$35,000 from the Solid Waste Reserve Account (3-777-00) 
for carpentry work for the new DPW Salt Building – referral from 
Finance & Administration Committee 

 
f. Council waiver of the residency requirement for new Town Manager 

James Chandler – referral from Finance & Administration Committee 
 

g. Council approval of a renewal liquor license for McLaughlin’s at the 
Marina  

 
h. Council referral of proposed FY19 budget to public hearing for June 

18th – referral from Finance & Administration Committee 



MONDAY                                      JUNE 4th, 2018           7:00 P.M. 

 

3 

 
       

E. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

 
F. MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 

G. CLERK’S COMMENTS 
 

 
H. COUNCILORS’ COMMENTS 

 
 
I. ADJOURNMENT  



townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-2-a









,•.••...•.••...••.....•••••....••••......•........••.....••.•......................• 

MONDAY MAY 21st
, 2018 

MINUTES 
7:00 P.M. 

1••·················································································

i. Council appointment of James N. Chandler as Town Manager,
effective June 7th, 2018 - Councilor Marble made a motion,
seconded by Councilor McAvoy, to appoint James N. Chandler as the
new Town Manager effective June "l'h, 2018. Unanimous vote in favor,
6-0.

Resolution 2018-78 

j. Council appointment of James N. Chandler as Treasurer, effective
June 7th, 2018 - Councilor Marble made a motion, seconded by
Councilor McAvoy, to appoint James N. Chandler as the new Town
Treasurer effective June "l'h, 2018. Unanimous vote in favor, 6-0.

Resolution 2018-79 

k. Council acceptance of Manager Jennings' updated letter of
resignation - referral from Finance & Administration Committee -
Councilor McAvoy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Marble, to 
accept the updated letter of resignation from Manager Jennings. 
Unanimous vote in favor, 6-0. Councilor Marble thanked Angus for all 
of the detailed work and many hours put into guiding the town and 
wished him well into the future. 

Resolution 2018-80 

I. Review of the RSU 22 proposed budget for FY19 - referral from
Finance & Administration Committee - Manager Jennings recapped
the RSU 22 Budget meeting at which he, Mayor McPike and Councilor
Marble were in attendance. It appears that Hampden's share of the
increase will be approximately $571,000. Councilor Marble reported
that the large increase is due in part to the change in school funding
formula from a 3-year average to a 2-year average. Another change
that impacts greatly is the switch from basing it on valuation rather than
enrollment. Manager Jennings reminded the public that the District
Budget Meeting is June "l'h at 7:00 p.m. at Hampden Academy.

m. Discussion regarding Councilor conduct - requested by

-

Councilor McA voy - Councilor McA voy began to read from a
prepared statement, attached as Exhibit A. Town Attorney Bearor
cautioned against making statements publicly. Councilor McAvoy and
Attorney Bearor debated. Councilor McAvoy made a motion to censure
Mayor McPike, seconded by Councilor Cormier. A roll call vote was
taken. Councilor Ryder - No, Councilor Marble - No, Councilor Wilde 
No, Councilor Cormier - No, Mayor McPike - No, Councilor McAvoy - 

Yes. Motion fails, 5-1.

5 











townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-3-a









 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 
   

 

  Until Help Arrives………..…….1 

 

  Summer Weather Safety…...…..3 

 

  FEMA Independent Study……...4 

 

  Training and Exercises…….........5 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Newsletter: Summer 2018 

Penobscot EMA  

What’s new??? 

The Penobscot County Emergency Management Agency and Penobscot Regional Com-

munication Center have teamed up and are teaching the FEMA course Until Help Ar-

rives.  The objective of the course is to help citizens realize they can make a difference 

in a life or death situation Until Help Arrives.  

 
This course teaches you basic skills to keep people with life-threatening injuries alive 

until professional help arrives. This is not a first aid course, it is basic skills and empow-

ering you to make a difference. 
 

Below is an example slide from the course. 

If you are interested in learning more, or would like to host a FREE training session 

contact Michelle Tanguay, Director, at Penobscot County EMA 947-4750. 

I’m an optimist, an  
optimist that carries a 

raincoat. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Harry Wilson 

https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiVqpyzz6HbAhUOvFkKHf3YCMEQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https%3A%2F%2Fmrc.hhs.gov%2FpageViewFldr%2FNewsEvents%2FUntilHelpArrives&psig=AOvVaw260XM8g-IRMiP9iiHiejT5&ust=1527363697552160
http://www.safeboatingcampaign.com/
townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-3-b



Page 2 Penobscot County EMA 

 

 

Lightning: What You Need to Know 

 NO PLACE outside is safe when thunderstorms are in the area!! 

 If you hear thunder, lightning is close enough to strike you. 

 When you hear thunder, immediately move to safe shelter: a substantial building with electricity or plumbing or 

an enclosed, metal-topped vehicle with windows up. 

Stay in safe shelter at least 30 minutes after you hear the last sound of thunder. 

 

Indoor Lightning Safety 

 Stay off corded phones, computers and other electrical equipment that put you in direct contact with electricity. 

 Avoid plumbing, including sinks, baths and faucets. 

 Stay away from windows and doors, and stay off porches. 

Do not lie on concrete floors, and do not lean against concrete walls. 

 

Last Resort Outdoor Risk Reduction Tips 
If you are caught outside with no safe shelter anywhere nearby the following actions may reduce your risk: 

 Immediately get off elevated areas such as hills, mountain ridges or peaks 

 Never lie flat on the ground 

 Never shelter under an isolated tree 

 Never use a cliff or rocky overhang for shelter 

 Immediately get out and away from ponds, lakes and other bodies of water 

Stay away from objects that conduct electricity (barbed wire fences, power lines, windmills, etc.) 

 

Summer Weather Safety Tips 

https://www.weather.gov/safety/lightning-tips 

https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiGh4-otqHbAhUxwFkKHcgBDjUQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.weather.gov%2Find%2FLightningSafetyAwareness&psig=AOvVaw35q_E-2wSHD_h4RFjTKV7f&ust=1527356970314341
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiRyMDMuKHbAhVDx1kKHSpoDVEQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https%3A%2F%2Femedprimarycare.com%2F2017%2F06%2F27%2Flightning-safety-awareness-week-jacksonville%2F&psig=AOvVaw0g8kHV5EGTRNyIl2QFsesV&u


Page 3 Penobscot County EMA 

FEMA Emergency Management Institute 
https://training.fema.gov/is 

INDEPENDENT STUDY COURSES –FREE! 
The Emergency Management Institute (EMI) offers self-paced course designed for people who have emer-
gency management responsibilities and the general public. All are offered free-of-charge to those who quali-

fy for enrollment. To get a complete listing of courses go to: https://training.fema.gov/is .  There is a 
total of 203 active courses listed on their Independent Study page.  

The Independent Study Program General Information The Emergency Management Institute’s (EMI) Cur-
riculum Management Branch offers the Independent Study Program (ISP). This is a distance learning pro-
gram which offers training, free of charge, to the nation’s emergency management network and the general 
public. It serves as both an alternative means to deliver valuable training to the professional and volunteer 
emergency management community as well as an opportunity to improve public awareness and promote 
disaster preparedness nationally.  

Students who successfully complete courses can also request student transcripts be provided to institutions 
to assist students in obtaining continuing education units and/or to military institutions for military person-
nel to earn retirement points. In addition, the program offers a customer support center to assist students.  

The customer support center can be reached through email at Independent.Study@fema.dhs.gov. or tele-
phone at 301-447-1200. The hours of operation are  Monday through Friday 8:00am-6:00pm ET. 

 

 

 

 

 

How to get started The fastest way to begin taking courses is to visit our website. You can learn 
about each course, download materials, and take courses interactively.  

Just follow these easy steps:  

1. Obtain a FEMA student ID number at: https://cdp.dhs.gov/femasid  

2. Go to our website: https://training.fema.gov/is/  

3. Click on ISP Course List  

4. Select your course of interest  

Once you have studied the training material, you can submit your final exam, all from the con-
venience of your home or office.  

Upon successful exam completion, you will receive an email within one business day that con-
firms your transcript has been updated and a link issued to create your electronic certificate.  



Page 4 Penobscot County EMA 

www.penobscotema.squarespace.com 

Look for Penobscot 

County EMA 

Exercise Schedule Training Opportunities 

Table Top: Mattagamon Dam 
Date: June 21, 2018 
Time: 8:30 a.m.—12:30 p.m. 

Location: Mattagamon Town Office 
FMI: Michelle Tanguay at mtanguay@penobscot-

county.net 

 

Base Camp Field Exercise 
Date: June 6 - June 7, 2018 
Time: 8:00 AM - 4:00 PM 
Location: Camp Roosevelt 
45 Camp Roosevelt Road, Eddington, ME 

FMI: Dale Rowley 338-3870                                                   

Email: emadirector@waldocountyme.gov  

Active Shooter Workshop 

Date: Tuesday June 5th, 2018 

Location: Jeff’s Catering, Brewer, ME 

Time: 8:30 am –4:30 pm—Morning refreshments & lunch provided. 

CLASS IS FULL – (FMI: penobscotema.squarespace.com) 

 

Until Help Arrives 

Date: Saturday June 16th, 2018 

Time: 9:00 am—12:00 pm 

Location: Penobscot Cty EMA 69 Hammond St, Bangor 

Presented By: Penobscot Cty EMA & PRCC 

Register—mtanguay@penobscot-county.net 

 

Tactical Emergency Casualty Care (TECC) Course  

Date: Tue & Wed June 12-13, 2018 

Time:  8:00—4:30 pm 

Location: Old Town Public Safety , Old Town, ME 

CLASS IS FULL  

 

ICS/EOC Interface Course (G191) 

Date: June 21, 2018. 

Location: MEMA  45 Commerce Drive, Augusta, ME 

Register: contact: Mike Grant 624-4460  

Email Michael.f.grant@maine.gov 

Don’t Forget to submit a FEMA application:  

https://training.fema.gov/apply/119-25-1 

Prerequisite: All students will have completed up to NIMS ICS 200 

(Basic) prior to taking the course.  

 

DHS: AWR-232 Mass Fatalities Planning & Response for 

Rural Communities. 

Date: Monday, October 1, 2018  

Time:  8:00-5:00 pm 

Location: Jeff’s Catering, 15 Littlefield Rd, Brewer, ME 

Registration Deadline: Sept. 17, 2018 

NO COST to Register at: www.RuralTraining.org 

 **You must have a FEMA SID number for class registration.** 

SOMETIMES YOU NEED MORE 

THAN AN INTERNET SEARCH. YOU 

NEED A CONVERSATION. 

  
Certain issues are hard to navigate. You’re 

not alone. 211 Maine can help. 

 

Online: 211maine.org 

Email: info@211maine.org 

Phone: Dial 211 

Register for your FEMA Student Identification number (SID) at: 

https://cdp.dhs.gov/femasid 

Resource Rodeo 

MEANG 

July 19th 0900—1200 

FMI Contact: 

Michelle Tanguay at 945-4750 or 

Email: mtanguay@penobscot-county.net 



townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-3-c



townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-4-a







townmanager
Typewritten Text
B-4-e





townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-1-a





townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-1-b



 

   

STORMWATER 101 
 

MS4 Program Updates 
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems  

Report on the status of the MS4 Program in Hampden Maine 

Permit Year 5 - July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 

Prepared by Karen Cullen, AICP, Town Planner 

May 29, 2018 

Keeping our waterways clean for everyone’s enjoyment 

Turtle Head Park overlooking the Penobscot River 



 

   

Introduction 

 Hampden is one of 30 regulated municipalities in Maine.  

 All regulated municipalities operate under a statewide General Permit, which 

has a five year cycle; the current one expires June 30, 2018. 

 The provisions of the permit are applicable only within the urbanized area as 

defined by the census bureau; based on population (gold areas in map below). 

 Hampden prepared a stormwater management plan most recently revised in 

2014. It will need to be updated in 2018/19, for the new permit cycle. 

 Hampden has identified the Sucker Brook watershed as our priority 

watershed, meaning this is where we focus our stormwater management plan 

implementation. Sucker Brook will also be listed this year as an “urban 

impaired stream” which may add additional requirements for the town, but at 

this time we don’t know what those might be (waiting for the new General 

Permit).    

MDEP/EPA Stormwater Program 

Under delegated  

authority from the EPA, 

the permit is issued by 

Maine DEP to meet the 

requirements of the  

Federal Clean Water 

Act. 

Bottom Line: Hampden is 

responsible for any   

pollutants entering our 

stormwater drainage 

system, even from the 

MEDOT system.  

1



 

   

Permit Year 5 

Required Activities 

Minimum Control Measure 1:  Education and Outreach 

BMP 1A: Municipal 

Outreach 

 Staff will be providing training to the Planning Board in June, and this report 

serves as outreach to the Town Council for this permit year. Our annual stream 

cleanup event was held on May 5, 2018 when 66 volunteers collected 40 bags of 

trash.  

BMP 1B: Municipal 

Media Resources 

 Staff continues to use Hampden Highlights as well as our Facebook Page and 

town website to communicate about stormwater with our residents.  

BMP 1C: Pool Owner 

Outreach 

 Staff has prepared a brochure that will be sent out to the owners of pools (over 

200) before the end of June; this brochure provides information on how to handle 

the water when the pool is drained.  

Minimum Control Measure 2: Public Involvement and Participation 

BMP 2A: Household 

Hazardous Waste 

 Information on how residents can dispose of household hazardous waste and 

electronic waste is provided on the town’s web site, and items such as batteries, 

monitors, and fluorescent bulbs are collected at the public works facility. 

Snapshots from the stream cleanup event 

Accomplishments 

2



 

   

Minimum Control Measure 3: Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination (IDDE) 

BMP 3A: Stormwater 

Infrastructure Map 

 Our GIS data includes information and locations of catch basins and outfalls, and 

as new ones are added in new development, they are added to the database.  

BMP 3B: Non-stormwater 

Discharge 

 Staff evaluates all identified discharges that are potentially illicit discharge 

incidents, and reports any that occur as required. So far this permit year there has 

been one spill, 20gallons of heating fuel oil on Western Ave. between Sawyer 

Road and the town line, about 4.5 miles outside of the urbanized area. 

BMP 3C: Dry Weather 

Outfall Inspections 

 Stillwater Environmental Engineering (SEE), our consultant on the MS4 Program, is 

currently performing the annual inspections, which are done within the Sucker 

Brook watershed. This year any flows found during dry weather will be tested for 

E-coli to determine if sewage is a potential contaminant.  

BMP 3D: Open Ditch 

Inspections 

 See BMP 3C. SEE is conducting the inspections concurrently.  

BMP 3E: Failing Septic 

Systems 

 Staff has identified 18 septic systems within the Urbanized Area (most of this area 

is served by public sewer). Staff will perform “drive-by” inspections of these 

properties for evidence of failing septic systems before the end of June. 

BMP 3F: Hydrant Flushing  Staff works with the Hampden Water District to document best management 

practices being implemented for flushing activity as well as testing results for total 

residual chlorine for the discharges, which is less than .01 ppm chlorine.  

Permit Year 5 

Required Activities Accomplishments 

3



 

   

Permit Year 5 

Required Activities 

Minimum Control Measure 4: Construction Site Stormwater Runoff Control 

BMP 4A: Notification  Staff utilizes the subdivision, site plan, and building permit applications to notify 

applicants of the requirement for contractors to register under the Maine 

Construction General Permit or Chapter 500. This applies to sites with 1+ acre 

land disturbance within the urbanized area.  

BMP 4B:  Regulatory 

Mechanism and 

Documentation 

 Staff tracks the sites that disturb 1+ acres of land within the urbanized area.  

BMP 4C: Construction Site 

Inspections 

 Staff performs inspections of sites with 1+ acre of land disturbance for 

compliance with the Maine Construction General Permit or Chapter 500. Two sites 

were inspected this year, Dennis Paper and Tradewinds. 

Minimum Control Measure 5:  Post Construction Stormwater Management in New 

Development and Redevelopment  

BMP 5A: Post        

Construction Discharge 

Ordinance 

 Staff continues to enforce the town’s Post Construction Stormwater Management 

Ordinance. This permit year one additional site was required to comply with this 

ordinance (Dennis Paper). Tradewinds will be added to this list next year since 

they will complete construction after July 1, 2018.  

BMP 5B: Post Construction 

Inspections 

 Staff ensures that owners or operators of post construction BMP’s within the 

urbanized area provide certification of proper function of the BMP’s. 

Accomplishments 

4



 

   

Permit Year 5 

Required Activities 

Minimum Control Measure 6: Pollution Prevention/Good Housekeeping for Municipal 

Operations  

BMP 6A: Grounds and 

Facilities 

 Staff reviews the Operations & Maintenance plan to ensure its effectiveness is 

maintained. 

BMP 6B: Employee 

Training 

 Staff has received training on O&M activities to ensure municipal operations do 

not contribute to stormwater pollution. 

BMP 6C: Street Sweeping  Street sweeping is conducted on all town owned and some state owned roads 

within the urbanized area each spring.  

BMP 6D: Storm Drain 

System Cleaning 

 Each spring during May and June, the storm drains in the urbanized area are 

inspected and those that require it are cleaned. When illicit discharges are 

suspected, they are investigated and appropriate action taken when such 

discharges are verified. 

BMP 6E: Maintenance 

and Upgrades 

 A couple of culverts on Old County Road were replaced to prevent erosion and 

sedimentation of the streams, based on the PY4 inspections.  

BMP 6F: Trash 

Management 

 Staff is awaiting completion of the Fiberight project before completing an 

evaluation of the municipal trash management program.  

BMP 6G: Municipal Pool 

Discharge 

 Staff discharges the pool water to the sanitary sewer system when necessary for 

pool maintenance.  

BMP 6H: Road Salt  Staff applied 1,858 tons of salt on the roadways during the winter of 2017/18, 

which is an increase from the previous winter. This increase was caused by 

significantly more snow or ice events. A new salt shed has been designed and 

approved and will be constructed during the summer of 2018. 

BMP 6I: Used Oil 

Recycling 

 Staff has collected about 220 gallons of used oil this year for recycling.  

Accomplishments 

5



 

   

Looking Ahead 

Hampden is committed 

to continuing to deal with 

stormwater management 

in compliance with the 

Clean Water Act to 

ensure our future 

generations have a safe 

environment to live in. 

 The statewide General Permit for the MS4 program has a five year lifespan 

and the current permit expires June 30, 2018. 

 DEP has been working with stakeholders throughout the state for nearly a 

year now to write the new general permit, but we have yet to see the final 

version. 

 The new general permit will become effective 90 days after it is signed by the 

Commissioner of the Maine Department of Environmental Protection, which DEP 

expects will be September 1, 2018, making the permit effective December 1 

or thereabouts. (These dates could change.) 

 Until the new general permit becomes effective, the current one will remain in 

effect, presumably we will continue to follow the Permit Year 5 requirements. 

 The town will need to file a new Notice of Intent (NOI) no later than 30 days 

prior to the effective date of the new general permit (i.e. 60 days after that 

permit is signed by DEP). This will require a public notice in the newspaper 

sometime during the month prior to the submission of the NOI. 

 The town will need to submit a new Stormwater Management Plan (SWMP) to 

DEP no later than December 31, 2019. This is the primary document we use in 

our day to day management of the stormwater system within the urbanized 

area.  

 Note that the urbanized area is based on the US Census, and is subject to 

change after the 2020 decennial census is completed and analyzed. The 

current map of the urbanized area will apply for the duration of the new 

general permit (expected to be Dec. 1, 2018 through Nov. 30, 2023.  

 For the near term, staff continues to monitor the drafts from DEP for the next 

general permit, and we submit comments regarding the impact to our town 

when appropriate.  

6



townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-3-a







townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-5-a



townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-5-b, D-5-c, D-5-d, D-5-e



townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-5-f



townmanager
Typewritten Text
D-5-g




















